
 

General Business                                     Lower Saucon Township                                              June 4, 2014 

& Developer                                                   Council Agenda                                                           7:00 p.m. 
 

 
I. OPENING 

 A. Call to Order 

 B. Roll Call 

 C. Pledge of Allegiance 

 D. Announcement of Executive Session (if applicable) 

 E. Public Comment Procedure 

   

II. PRESENTATIONS/HEARINGS  
A. Discover Lehigh Valley Visitor’s Guide – Nancy Signorovitch 

B. Resolution #55-2014 – Public Hearing – Acquisition of Property Located at 4166 Lower Saucon Road  

 

III. DEVELOPER ITEMS 

A. Elysium Acquisitions – Roth’s Farm Estates Minor – 819 Texas Road – Preliminary/Final Plan Approval 

B. VNA – 2455 Black River Road – Request for Release of Maintenance Period 

    
IV. TOWNSHIP BUSINESS ITEMS 

A. Zoning Hearing Board – Jeffrey & Eileen Bruchak – 3536 Kefallonia Drive – Variance for Dimensional 

Setback 

B. Resolution #56-2014 – Authorizing the Transfer of Monies from One Township Line Item to Another 

C. Approval of Altronics Quote for Installation of Security System on New Front Door 

   

V. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS ITEMS 

A. Approval of May 21, 2014 Minutes 

     

VI. PUBLIC COMMENT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
 

VII. COUNCIL & STAFF REPORTS   

 A. Township Manager 

 B. Council 

 C. Solicitor 

 D. Engineer 

 E. Planner  

 

VIII. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 

Next EAC Meeting:  June 10, 2014 

Next Saucon Valley Partnership:  June 11, 2014 @ LST 

Next Zoning Hearing Board Meeting:  June 16, 2014 
Next Council Meeting:  June 18, 2014 

Next Saucon Rail Trail Oversight Commission Meeting:  June 23, 2014 @ LST 

Next Planning Commission Meeting:  June 26, 2014 
Next Park & Rec Meeting:  July 7, 2014 

 

 

 

www.lowersaucontownship.org 



 
General Business                                             Lower Saucon Township                                              June 4, 2014 

& Developer                                                          Council Minutes                                                            7:00 P.M. 
 

 
I. OPENING 

 

CALL TO ORDER:  The General Business & Developer meeting of Lower Saucon Township Council 

was called to order on Wednesday, June 4, 2014 at 7:00 P.M., at Lower Saucon Township, 3700 Old 

Philadelphia Pike, Bethlehem, PA with Mr. Ron Horiszny, presiding.     

   

 ROLL CALL:  Present:  Ron Horiszny, President; Tom Maxfield, Vice President; and Priscilla deLeon, 

Council members; Jack Cahalan, Township Manager; Leslie Huhn, Assistant Manager; Judy Stern 

Goldstein, Township Planner; and Dan Miller, Township Engineer.  Absent:  Glenn Kern and Dave 

Willard, Council members and Linc Treadwell, Township Solicitor. 

  

 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

 ANNOUNCEMENT OF ANY EXECUTIVE SESSION (IF APPLICABLE) 

 

Mr. Horiszny said Council did not meet in Executive Session since the last meeting. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT/CITIZEN AGENDA ITEMS 

 Mr. Horiszny said if you are on the agenda, you have Council and Staff’s undivided attention.  If you do 

choose to speak, we ask that you use one of the microphones.  He asks that you give your fellow public the 

courtesy of the floor.  We ask that you state your name for the record so the transcriptionist knows who is 

speaking in the minutes.  If you are up at the table, please speak into the microphone.  Mr. Cahalan said 

II.B. has been tabled. 

 

II. PRESENTATIONS/HEARINGS 

A. DISCOVER LEHIGH VALLEY VISITOR’S GUIDE – NANCY SIGNOROVITCH 
Mr. Horiszny said Nancy Signorovitch is here tonight from Discover Lehigh Valley to provide 

additional information on advertising in the Visitor’s Guide.  Township staff has prepared a draft 

description that can be posted in the guide if we become a non-profit partner. 

 

Ms. Signorovitch said Discover Lehigh Valley is tourism agency for Lehigh and Northampton 

Counties.  A partnership with them for non-profit organizations would be $325.00/year in which 

you receive one listing in the visitor’s guide and would be listed on their website and receive one 

dedicated page where you can have a logo, up to 300 words, six images which would only be on 

the website.   The visitor’s guide provides for one location and any additional listings would cost 

$140.00 each.   

 

Mrs. deLeon said LST is trying to encourage expansion of commercial areas and this would 

showcase the Township to visitors coming in.   Ms. Signorovitch said you can give them as many 

rack cards as you want and they will distribute them to the 70 locations.   

 

Mr. Cahalan said they have about 200 words so far that they could put on the web page, which Mr. 

Horiszny read.   Ms. Signorovitch said on everyone’s page it lists places to stay and eat nearby.  

The deadline to get in the magazine would be September 1
st
.  Events can be put on the calendar, 

anything that is open to the public. 

 
MOTION BY: Mrs. deLeon moved to approve the membership for Discover Lehigh Valley for the next fiscal 

year at $325.00/year with any additional listings at $140.00 beginning immediately.  

SECOND BY: Mr. Maxfield 

 Mr. Horiszny asked if anyone had any comments or questions?  No one raised their hand. 

ROLL CALL: 3-0 (Absent – Mr. Kern and Mr. Willard) 

 



General Business & Developer Meeting    

June 4, 2014 
 

Page 2 of 7 

B. RESOLUTION #55-2014 – PUBLIC HEARING – ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY 

LOCATED AT 4166 LOWER SAUCON ROAD 
This agenda item was tabled. 

 

III. DEVELOPER ITEMS 

A. ELYSIUM ACQUISITIONS – ROTH’S FARM ESTATES MINOR – 819 TEXAS ROAD – 

PRELIMINARY/FINAL PLAN APPROVAL (7:18 PM) 

Mr. Horiszny said the applicant is seeking final conditional subdivision approval for a Williams 

Township subdivision in which a portion of the two lots are within Lower Saucon Township. 

                       

DRAFT MOTION FOR ROTH’S FARM ESTATES MINOR SUBDIVISION PLAN – 819 

TEXAS ROAD, TAX MAP PARCEL NO. N8-16-8A PRELIMINARY/FINAL 

SUBDIVISION PLAN  

 

The Lower Saucon Township Staff offers the following approval motion for consideration by the 

Township Council for the “Preliminary Plan Roth’s Farm Estates,” as prepared by Arthur A. 

Swallow Associates, dated October 30, 2013, last revised March 26, 2014, consisting of eight (8) 

sheets including a cover sheet.   
 

Subject to the following conditions: 

1. The Plan shall note that no further subdivision or development will be permitted within 

Lower Saucon Township for Lot 1 and Lot 2. 

2. The Plan shall provide blocks for Lower Saucon Township Planning Commission and 

Council review and approval.   

3. The Applicant shall provide for legal authority, conveyance capacity, and ongoing 

maintenance for the downstream conveyance of the detention basin discharge in a manner 

satisfactory to the Township.  The basin discharge will be diffused in a manner acceptable 

to the Township Engineer.  These improvements shall be installed prior to plan recording 

or have their construction secured in a manner acceptable to the Township Solicitor.   

4. The Plan shall be approved by Williams Township. 

5. The Applicant shall provide two (2) Mylars and seven (7) prints of the Record Plans with 

original signatures, notarizations, and seals.  Four (4) complete sets of Plans shall also be 

provided with original signatures, notarizations, and seals.   

 

The Applicant shall also provide two (2) CDs of all Plans in a functional editable file format (e.g. 

AutoCAD files) as well as a static image format (e.g. jpeg or pdf). 

 

The Applicant shall pay any outstanding escrow balance due to the Township for review of the 

Plans and the preparation of legal documents. 

 

The Applicant shall satisfy all these conditions within one (1) year of the date of the conditional 

approval unless an extension is granted by the Township Council. 

 

Township Council further authorizes the Township Manager to notify the Applicant of Council’s 

actions. 

 

Mr. Art Swallow and Mr. Strauss were present.  Mr. Swallow explained the subdivision which is in 

Williams Township, a portion of which is in LST from the plans he presented.      

 

Mr. Maxfield asked about the stormwater drainage across the properties.  The P/C recommendation 

is to satisfy the Township Engineer.  Mr. Miller said he reviewed the stormwater drainage and they 

still have some questions.  He explained what the applicants propose to do which would distribute 

the water and that water would go across the yards and be re-concentrated in existing swales.  They 

are addressing the discharge at the basin not being worse than existing.  The property owner that 



General Business & Developer Meeting    

June 4, 2014 
 

Page 3 of 7 

has it is responsible for the stormwater drainage, but the legal aspects have not been worked out as 

of yet.   

 

Mr. Swallow said they are not altering any water course.  This will be an improvement or reduction 

in actual volume to the existing water courses.  They are trying to satisfy the Engineer, LVPC and 

Williams Township.   

 

Mrs. deLeon said her concern is if they sell it and then the new property owner has to know about 

all of this.  Mr. Swallow said they have to satisfy the Northampton County Conservation District 

with a NPDES permit, so they will file a document that’s cross-referenced in any title search which 

is required by the DEP, administered by Northampton County.  They are covered on this and there 

are plenty of safeguards. 

 

MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved for approval of the Roth’s Farm Estates Minor with the conditions in the 

draft motion. 

SECOND BY: Mrs. deLeon 

 Mr. Horiszny asked if anyone had any comments or questions?  No one raised their hand. 

ROLL CALL: 3-0 (Absent – Mr. Kern and Mr. Willard) 

 

B. VNA – 2455 BLACK RIVER ROAD – REQUEST FOR RELEASE OF MAINTENANCE 

PERIOD (7:31 PM) 

Mr. Horiszny said the applicant has requested release of the maintenance period associated with 

this project.  A final inspection has been conducted and a draft motion has been prepared to release 

the maintenance bond associated with this land development. 

 

DRAFT MOTION FOR VNA HOSPICE LAND DEVELOPMENT 2455 BLACK RIVER 

ROAD, TAX MAP PARCEL Q6SW2-19-5 RELEASE OF MAINTENANCE APPROVAL  

 

The Lower Saucon Township Staff offers the following approval motion for consideration by the 

Township Council for the end of the maintenance period and release of maintenance security for 

the VNA Hospice Land Development.   

 

Subject to the following conditions: 

 

1. The property owner acknowledges, as evidenced by their signature approving these 

conditions, that they are aware of the sag in the pipe between Inlet 1 and ES-1 and that they 

and their heirs and assigns accept all responsibility for any future repairs or remediation of 

the pipe sag as well as any consequences related to the condition of the pipe and future 

repairs.   

2. The Applicant shall pay any outstanding escrow balance due to the Township for review of 

the Plans and the preparation of legal documents. 

 

Mr. Cahalan said they completed the final inspection and there are no other issues. 

 

MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved for approval of VNA as stated in the draft motion. 

SECOND BY: Mrs. deLeon 

 Mr. Horiszny asked if anyone had any comments or questions?  No one raised their hand. 

ROLL CALL: 3-0 (Absent – Mr. Kern and Mr. Willard) 
 

 

IV. TOWNSHIP BUSINESS ITEMS 

 

A. ZONING HEARING BOARD VARIANCE – JEFFREY & EILEEN BRUCHAK – 3536 

KEFALLONIA DRIVE – REQUEST FOR DIMENSIONAL SETBACK (7:32 PM) 



General Business & Developer Meeting    

June 4, 2014 
 

Page 4 of 7 

Mr. Horiszny said the applicant is seeking a variance from the required rear yard setback to install 

a pool. 

 

Mr. Bruchak said they would like a pool for their son who has a medical condition he’ll have to 

live with the rest of his life.  The doctors said the best thing for him would be to exercise by 

swimming.  They do winter swimming at the high school and would like their son to swim five 

months out of the year at home for the benefit of his health.  They would install a heater in the 

pool.  The pool they have now doesn’t suit their son now as he has grown.  Council took no action. 

 

B. RESOLUTION #56-2014 – AUTHORIZING THE TRANSFER OF MONIES FROM ONE 

TOWNSHIP LINE ITEM TO ANOTHER (7:37 PM) 

Mr. Horiszny said Resolution #56-2014 has been prepared authorizing the transfer of monies from 

one Township line item to another to cover the fencing around the dog kennel that Council 

authorized at their last meeting. 

 

Mr. Horiszny asked if the water line would be enclosed in the fencing.  Mr. Cahalan said they will 

not enclose the water line in case there’s maintenance that has to be done.   

 

MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved for approval of Resolution #56-2014 – transferring funds from 

contingency to PW fencing of $3,595.00. 

SECOND BY: Mrs. deLeon 

Mr. Horiszny asked if anyone had any comments or questions?  Mr. Boyer asked how much 

does it cost?  Mr. Maxfield said it’s $3,595.00 being transferred. 

ROLL CALL: 3-0 (Absent – Mr. Kern and Mr. Willard) 

 

C. APPROVAL OF ALTRONICS QUOTE FOR INSTALLATION OF SECURITY SYSTEM 

ON NEW FRONT DOOR (7:38 PM) 

Mr. Horiszny said they have a quote from Altronics to install an access control system on the new 

front doors at Town Hall.  

 

Mr. Cahalan said the front door has been replaced and this would be similar to what was on the old 

door.  The estimate from Altronics is $2,498.00.   
 

MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved for approval of the $2,498.00 to Altronics for the alarming of the front 

door. 

SECOND BY: Mrs. deLeon 

 Mr. Horiszny asked if anyone had any comments or questions?  Mrs. deLeon asked if it was 

budgeted?  Mr. Calahan said yes. 

ROLL CALL: 3-0 (Absent – Mr. Kern and Mr. Willard) 

 

V. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS ITEMS 

 

A. APPROVAL OF MAY 21, 2014 MINUTES  (7:40 PM) 
Mr. Horiszny said the draft minutes of the May 21, 2014 Council meeting have been prepared and 

are ready for Council’s review and approval.  He asked Leslie to make some grammatical changes. 
 

MOTION BY: Mr. Horiszny moved for approval of the May 21, 2014 Council minutes, with changes. 

SECOND BY: Mr. Maxfield 

 Mr. Horiszny asked if anyone had any comments or questions?  Mrs. deLeon said the motion 

has to pass by majority.  Mr. Horiszny said of those present.  Mr. Maxfield said they went over 

this the last year, with the Solicitor telling them that it is only for ordinances and resolutions 

that we need to have a majority of the entire Council present.  For anything else, it’s the 

majority of the present members.   

ROLL CALL: 2-1 (No – Mrs. deLeon; Absent – Mr. Kern and Mr. Willard) 

 



General Business & Developer Meeting    

June 4, 2014 
 

Page 5 of 7 

VI. PUBLIC COMMENT/CITIZEN NON-AGENDA ITEMS  
 Suzanne Vigeant and Michael Carbonara from Ridge Drive were present.  Ms. Vigeant said they 

are having issues in their development with excessive noise and they have called the Police several 

times.  ATV’s are riding on property near Woodland Drive.  They are driving hours and hours on 

end with lots of noise.  When the Police come out, they can go talk to them, it’s within the nuisance 

ordinance.  The Police Chief and Chris Garges are talking about some options to get decibel 

readings.  That doesn’t resolve the ATV dawn to dusk.  Dawn this morning was 5:30 AM, so 

technically they could go out there and ride those bikes.  The noise is constant and loud.  They are 

bringing in other bikes and it’s abuse.  She wants Council to re-address this ordinance.  Mr. 

Carbonara said regarding the noise ordinance, there’s no set numbers and it’s very subjective.  

There should be a decibel reading to go along with that.  He proposes the ATV law include a noise 

limit.  Many of these bikes are riding with modified exhaust systems.  Mr. Maxfield said they went 

through long talks with this ordinance and the existing ATV ordinance is something that they felt 

they could enforce.  Mr. Carbonara said they ride right along the property boundary.  These people 

have 40 some odd acres, 100’ isn’t going to make a difference with four or five bikes going at one 

time.  Mr. Maxfield said they’ve done things in the past with mediation and just talking to people.  

Mr. Carbonara said he tried doing that.  He doesn’t have a problem with them riding, it’s the noise 

that is bothering him.  Mr. Cahalan said there is a provision in state law that prohibits modification 

of mufflers on ATV’s, so they are looking into this.  The Zoning Officer got a complaint about 

earth disturbance and he’s looked into that and told the owner to apply for permits and to cease 

construction activities until that’s been complied with.  Mr. Carbonara questioned who reviews the 

permits for the construction.   Mr. Cahalan said that has to be reviewed by the Zoning Officer. 

 Michael Carbonara, Jr. said on a decibel reader app on his phone he was getting between 100 and 

120 decibels from the activity on their property.  The EPA could also get involved as it’s noise 

pollution and this should be looked at as this is affecting 15 homes and 30 people.  Mr. Maxfield 

said that’s why he would push mediation and come to some sort of neighborhood agreement. 

 Michael Rodogna said he’s the property owner.  He’s very strict with his son and the people who 

ride at his house and they close down at 8:00 p.m. every night.  They are off the property lines and 

within the verbiage in the ordinance as he checked this.  He’s never met any of these people except 

Mr. Carbonara whom he met last year.  He is more than happy to be a good neighbor.  They ride 

for 6 to 8 hours a week tops.  They have it all documented as he saw this coming.  At no point in 

time did anyone come to talk to them.  The kids don’t ride on the weekends as they are usually at a 

race.  He is not going to stop his son from practicing the sport he chose to do.  They are well aware 

of all the guidelines and rules and is in conversation with Chris Garges right now and also intends 

to farm the property.  He said the bikes have proper mufflers.  Some of the bikes are loud.  They 

usually do it from 5:30 p.m. to 8:00 p.m.  He said he would not be opposed to mediation. 

 

VII. COUNCIL & STAFF REPORTS 

A. TOWNSHIP MANAGER 

 Mr. Cahalan said he had a report on the Skibo Road sinkhole prepared by Chris Taylor.  He 

is requesting approval of $2,275.00 to Gary Hillegass Contracting to replace the sidewalk 

area that was affected.   

 

MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved for approval for Gary Hillegass Contacting to replace the sidewalk at a 

cost of $2,275.00. 

SECOND BY: Mr. Horiszny 

 Mr. Horiszny asked if anyone had any questions?  No one raised their hand. 

ROLL CALL: 3-0 (Mr. Kern and Mr. Willard – Absent) 

 

 Ms. Kareen Bleam said she took notice that the street cleaner was going around Steel City 

collecting the cinders and asked what they did with the cinders?  Mr. Cahalan said they 

bring them back to the Township and make a big pile of them.  Ms. Bleam said there are 

some neighbors that would like some.  Mr. Cahalan said if you fill out a request for spoil 

material form, they could have what they want taken up to their house or driveway after 

approval.   



General Business & Developer Meeting    

June 4, 2014 
 

Page 6 of 7 

 Mr. Cahalan said he has a recommendation from Parks & Recreation Board that we restore 

the sand volleyball court at Town Hall.  The P&R Board is requesting the Township 

Planner look at the layout for Town Hall Park and select the best location and come back to 

Council to discuss that. 

   
MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved for approval for our Planner to take a look at the layout for Town Hall 

Park for a sand volleyball court and come back to Council to report on it. 

SECOND BY: Mrs. deLeon 

ROLL CALL: 3-0 (Mr. Kern and Mr. Willard – Absent) 

 

 Mr. Cahalan said the Rotary Club is seeking proposals for community service projects in 

the 2014-2015 year.   

 Mr. Cahalan said you got an email from Leslie about the odor issue and DEP indicated 

they would meet with staff on Tuesday, June 24, 2014 at 10:00 a.m. at the Township.  We 

need to send them an agenda by June 10, 2014.  The attendees we have so far are himself, 

Chris Garges, Leslie Huhn, Chris Taylor, Jim Birdsall, Ron Horiszny, Tom Maxfield, 

Priscilla deLeon, and Dave Willard.  Mrs. deLeon asked if four Council members were to 

attend, would it violate the Sunshine Law?  Mr. Cahalan said the solicitor has said that it 

won’t violate the Sunshine Law.  Mrs. deLeon said she’d like it in writing in case she gets 

a fine.  Mr. Horiszny said it’s information gathering as long as we don’t vote and we can 

ask questions.   Mr. Cahalan said he has at least six memos that were sent out to Council 

from the Solicitor previously saying that it does not violate the Sunshine Law.  She asked 

for copies. 

 

B. COUNCIL 

Mrs. deLeon 

 She said she attended Se-Wy-Co/Leithsville Station open house and it was wonderful.  The 

guys did a fantastic job. 

 She said the Conservancy held the photo work shop on Saturday morning and people from 

all over the area were impressed. 

 She said today they got an EPA notice.  Mr. Miller said they looked into this.  EPA came 

to the DEP NE region, looked at their books, and took some samples for the MS4 permit.  

The municipality is obligated to prepare reports and HEA does that for you.  They 

submitted it to DEP.  EPA enforces it.  They’ve been doing this through DEP and getting 

their approval for some time now.  A month ago, EPA sent representatives to DEP offices, 

took some reports and found 120 of the samples they took to be in violation under the MS4 

permit.  Paul Grella, MS4 Coordinator at DEP is very confused why this is happening as 

he’s been approved all along.  HEA will be getting in contact with the EPA to make sure 

we satisfy what they need.   

Mr. Willard – Absent 

Mr. Kern – Absent 

 

Mr. Maxfield  
 He said he talked to Chris Garges about a property they were looking at with mowing 

issues and the property was destined to become naturalized.  In the uncut area they saw a 

snake and were worried.  He is going to propose that the EAC do an educational campaign 

that addresses what is and what is not dangerous.  Mrs. deLeon said we can put it in the 

next newsletter. 

Mr. Horiszny 

 He said he and Jack were at the Se-Wy-Co/Leithsville station opening and it was quite an 

event. 

 June 16
th
 is the Volunteer recognition picnic. 

 

C. SOLICITOR – Absent 

D. PLANNER – No report 



General Business & Developer Meeting    

June 4, 2014 
 

Page 7 of 7 

E. ENGINEER – No report 

 

V. ADJOURNMENT 

 

MOTION BY: Mrs. deLeon moved for adjournment.  The time was 8:31 pm. 

SECOND BY:  Mr. Maxfield 

Mr. Horiszny asked if anyone had any questions?  No one raised their hand. 

ROLL CALL: 3-0 (Absent - Mr. Kern and Mr. Willard) 
 

Submitted by: 

 

 

________________________________    __________________________________ 

Jack Cahalan       Ron Horiszny     

Township Manager      President of Council 


